
 

 

 
 

RIVERDALE CITY PLANNING COMMISSION AGENDA 
CIVIC CENTER - 4600 S. WEBER RIVER DR.  

________________________________________TUESDAY – OCTOBER 28, 2014 
6:00 p.m. –Work Session (City Council Conference Room)  
The purpose of the work session is to review maps, plans, paperwork, etc.  No motions or 
decisions will be considered during this session, which is open to the public. 
 
Planning Commission Work Session Items 

o Planning Commission discussion on Conditional Uses and Due Process 
Presenter: Michael Eggett, Community Development Director 

6:30 p.m. – Planning Commission Meeting (Council Chambers) 

A. Welcome & Roll Call  

B. Open Communications 
(This is an opportunity to address the Planning Commission regarding your 
concerns or ideas.  Please try to limit your comments to three minutes.) 

C. Presentations and Reports 

 Community Development Report 

D. Consent Items 
 1.  Consideration of meeting minutes from:  

 October 14, 2014 Work Session 
   October 14, 2014 Planning Commission   
 
E. Action Items  

1. Consideration of recommendation to City Council for Conditional Use Permit 
application for electronic sign located at approximately 5152 S. 1500 W.  
Petitioner: Golden Spike Harley-Davidson Representative  

 
F.  Discretionary Items 

 

G.   Adjournment 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 The public is invited to attend all Planning Commission meetings. 
 In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, persons in need of special 

accommodation should contact the City Recorder at 394-5541 x 1232. 
 This agenda has been properly posted and a copy provided to local news media. 



RIVERDALE CITY 
PLANNING COMMISSION AGENDA 

October 28, 2014 
 

 
AGENDA ITEM: Work Session Items 

 
SUBJECT: Planning Commission training article:  Conditional Uses and Due Process 
 
PETITIONER: Per Community Development Director desire this item will be 

placed on the agenda as a permanent and regular item. 

 
ACTION REQUESTED BY PETITIONER: Training document review   
 
INFORMATION:  Conditional Uses and Due Process 
 

 
BACK TO AGENDA 

 















RIVERDALE CITY 
PLANNING COMMISSION AGENDA 

October 28, 2014 
 

AGENDA ITEM: B 

 
SUBJECT: Open Communications 
 
PETITIONER: Anyone Interested 
 
ACTION REQUESTED BY PETITIONER: Open agenda item provided for any 

interested person to be able to speak 
about any topic. 

 
INFORMATION: Per Governing Body desire, this item will be placed on the agenda 

as a permanent and regular item. 
 

BACK TO AGENDA 
 



RIVERDALE CITY 
PLANNING COMMISSION AGENDA  

October 28, 2014 
 

AGENDA ITEM: C1 
 
SUBJECT: Community Development Projects Status Report  

ACTION REQUESTED BY PETITIONER: Information only.   

INFORMATION: Opportunity for the Community Development Director to present 
any updates or information on follow-up issues to the Planning 
Commission. 

 
 Community Development Report 

 
 

BACK TO AGENDA 
 



OPEN FOR BUSINESS 

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT PROJECTS STATUS REPORT 
 

October 17, 2014 

NEW & ONGOING DEVELOPMENTS 

Massage Envy Spa has opened at 4097 S. 
Riverdale Road. A ribbon cutting was held on 
October 3rd. 

Construction is nearing completion on a commercial retail 
building in the Riverdale Business Park located at 5175 
South 1500 West. 

Riverdale 

Business 

Park 

Ken Garff Honda located at 950 W. Riverdale Road, 
is doing an interior remodel of their dealership. 

The Pelican Restaurant and Pub is open at 4029 S. 
Riverdale Road in the former TGI Friday’s building. A 
ribbon cutting was held on October 19th. 

Massage Envy Spa The Pelican Restaurant 



RIVERDALE CITY 
PLANNING COMMISSION AGENDA  

October 28, 2014 
 

AGENDA ITEM: D 
 
 
SUBJECT: Consideration of meeting minutes from:  

 October 14, 2014 Work Session 
 October 14, 2014 Planning Commission   
 

PETITIONER: City Recorder 
 
ACTION REQUESTED BY PETITIONER: Approve minutes 
 
INFORMATION: See attached minutes as follows:   

 

  October 14, 2014 Work Session 
 
 
  October 14, 2014 Planning Commission   
 

 
 

BACK TO AGENDA 
 
 



 

 

Administrative Offices 

4600 So. Weber River Drive 

Riverdale, Utah  84405 

 
 
Minutes of the Work Session of the Riverdale City Planning Commission held 
Tuesday, October 14, 2014 at 6:03 p.m. at the Riverdale Civic Center, 4600 South 
Weber River Drive. 
 
Members Present:       Blair Jones, Chairman  

Michael Roubinet, Commissioner 
Cody Hansen, Commissioner 
David Gailey, Commissioner 
Lori Fleming, Commissioner 
Steve Hilton, Commissioner 

 
Members Excused: Kathy Eskelsen, Commissioner 
 
Others Present: Michael Eggett, Community Development Director; Ember 

Herrick, City Recorder and no members of the public.   
 
Chairman Jones welcomed the Planning Commission members to the work session 
stating for the record that all were in attendance except for Commissioner Eskelsen who 
is excused.  Community Development Director Michael Eggett said Riverdale City has 
finalized the purchase of 17.7 acres of property on River Park Drive, including a road 
intended to facilitate connectivity with another piece of property the city owns across the 
Weber River.  Commissioner Hilton asked it the road is located to the east of the 17.7 
acres and Mr. Eggett confirmed that is the location.   
 
Mr. Eggett said the only updates to the Community Development Report are the recent 
openings of Massage Envy and Pelican Café.   He said new developments will be 
forthcoming and proposals previously approved through a development agreement won’t 
require Planning Commission consideration.  According to Mr. Eggett, developers have 
expressed interest to him in four of Riverdale’s five RDA project areas, with the 
exception of the 550 West Project Area.    
 
Chairman Jones asked for any changes or corrections to the previous meeting minutes 
and none were noted.   
 
Chairman Jones said the only action item on tonight’s agenda is final consideration of a 
proposal to build a preschool called Bravo Arts Academy at address 5165 S. 1500 W.  
Mr. Eggett said this application was submitted by Mike Ford and all updated reports were 
included in the packet, including an amended site plan.  He said Lot 1 will require a lot 
line adjustment which will be done through Weber County and verified by staff prior to 
any preconstruction meetings.  Mr. Eggett said a preschool is a permitted use in this C-3 
Zone and if the Planning Commission forwards a favorable recommendation it will be 
considered by the City Council at their October 21, 2014 meeting.  Commissioner 



 

 

Hansen asked what materials will be used on this building and Mr. Eggett said Mr. Ford 
has promised to provide a color scheme during tonight’s public meeting.  Mr. Eggett said 
Mr. Ford will be responsible for keeping the weeds mowed on the adjacent Lot 4, which 
will not be developed at the same time as Lot 1.  He said the Planning Commission 
should question Mr. Ford about the outstanding issues associated with this request 
including signage, lighting, building materials and an ADA compliant ramp.  
Commissioner Roubinet asked about sewer capacity and Mr. Eggett said preliminary 
sewer capacity studies conducted by Riverdale’s Public Works Department look positive.  
Commissioner Roubinet asked how this is measured and Mr. Eggett said the building 
inspector and contractor will estimate waste water disposal.  Mr. Eggett said Mr. Ford has 
demonstrated how a dish washing feature in their Clearfield building reuses water and 
has agreed to put in low flow toilets.  Mr. Eggett said he is confident that Mr. Ford is 
committed to installing water wise appliances to minimize the impact of this new 
development on Riverdale’s sewer capacity.  Commissioner Hilton asked where a 
spillway listed on the plan will empty and Mr. Eggett said into the designated detention 
basin.   
 
Mr. Eggett said Riverdale City’s Engineer Scott Nelson identified that the sidewalk in 
front of the proposed development is not located within the city’s right of way.  He said 
although there is no code requirement, he has advised Mr. Ford that legal ownership be 
clarified so responsibility for the sidewalk’s maintenance and liability are clear.  Mr. 
Eggett said there are no significant staff concerns that would keep the Planning 
Commission from approving this request tonight and Chairman Jones said approval could 
be contingent on the outstanding issues identified by staff being resolved.  Chairman 
Jones asked for any additional questions or comments and none were noted.   
 
Chairman Jones asked for any discretionary items and Commissioner Hilton said the 
electronic Riverside Storage sign is malfunctioning again and appears to be broken and 
isn’t dimming properly at night and Mr. Eggett said he will contact the business owner.  
Commissioner Hansen asked if Mr. Eggett had followed up about additional UTA bus 
shelters and Mr. Eggett said he communicated Commissioner Hansen’s concern to Mayor 
Norm Searle and City Administrator Rodger Worthen that are planning to meet with a 
UTA representative soon.  Commissioner Hansen asked if the RDA has acquired any 
more properties in the 550 West Project Area and Mr. Eggett said he and Mr. Worthen 
did meet with one homeowner who frequently works out of state but they haven’t heard 
back from the individual in a while due to his work schedule.  Mr. Eggett said a new 
developer has expressed interest in the West Bench Project Area and he will give the 
Planning Commission more information as soon as he is authorized by the developer to 
make the information public.  Commissioner Hilton asked for an update about the Eames 
duplex sewer line disagreement where the developer wanted to save money by tying into 
the PRUD line but city ordinance required him to tie into the city’s line by cutting into 
4400 South.  Mr. Eggett said this property owner has contacted several city officials to 
express his dissatisfaction with the city’s legal determination but the work has now been 
completed and the road patched so hopefully the debate is over. 
 
There being no further business, the Planning Commission adjourned at 6:22 p.m. 



 

 

 
Approved:  October 28, 2014           Attest:  
 
 
________________________             ________________________ 
Blair Jones, Chairman                           Ember Herrick, City Recorder  



 

 

 
 
Minutes of the Regular Meeting of the Riverdale City Planning Commission held Tuesday, 
October 14, 2014 at 6:33 p.m. at the Riverdale Civic Center, 4600 South Weber River Drive. 
 
Members Present:       Blair Jones, Chairman  

David Gailey, Commissioner 
Michael Roubinet, Commissioner 
Cody Hansen Commissioner 
Lori Fleming, Commissioner 
Steve Hilton, Commissioner 
 

Member Excused: Kathy Eskelsen, Commissioner  
 
Others Present: Michael Eggett, Community Development Director; Ember Herrick, City 

Recorder and one member of the public Mike Ford.   
 
A.   Welcome & Roll Call  
Chairman Jones welcomed everyone to the meeting and stated for the record all members of the 
Planning Commission are present except for Commissioner Eskelsen who is excused.   
 
B.   Open Communications  
Chairman Jones said there are no members of the public present to speak during the open 
communications portion of the meeting.     
 
C.   Presentations and Reports  
Community Development Director Michael Eggett said the only updates to the Community 
Development Report are the grand openings of Massage Envy and the Pelican Café.  He said the 
Riverdale Road construction project is one week behind schedule due to a rain delay and should 
be complete by November 8, 2014 with a project unveiling scheduled prior to Thanksgiving.     
 
D.   Consent Items  
1.  Consideration of meeting minutes from:  

September 23, 2014 Work Session 
  September 23, 2014 Planning Commission   
 
Chairman Jones asked for any changes or corrections to the previous meeting minutes and none 
were noted.   

  Motion: Commissioner Hilton moved to approve the consent items.  Commissioner 
Gailey seconded the motion.    

 
There was no discussion on the motion.   

Call the Question: The motion passed unanimously. 

 
 
 



 

Riverdale City Planning Commission                                                   2                                                                                   October 14, 2014  

E. Action Items  
 1. Final review of Bravo Arts Academy site plan proposal  
Chairman Jones said the only action item on tonight’s agenda is a final site plan review of a 
proposal by Bravo Arts Academy at address 5165 S. 1500 W.  Mr. Eggett said developer Mike 
Ford is the petitioner and this preschool use is permitted in the C-3 Zone.  He said a lot line 
adjustment to expand Lot 1 by shrinking Lot 4 will be done through Weber County.   Mr. Eggett 
said the outstanding issues associated with this request are that signage and lighting requirements 
for the development and a list of building materials in aesthetic harmony with the existing 
businesses in the area.  He said early sewer capacity studies look favorable and staff has no 
concerns that would prevent the Planning Commission from forwarding a favorable 
recommendation to the City Council for their consideration of this site plan request at their 
meeting on October 21, 2014.   
 
Mr. Ford showed his Bravo Arts Academy promotional video again.  He said the development 
materials will be brick, stucco, and wainscot paneling and Commissioner Roubinet asked if the 
colors are similar to the Clearfield building and Mr. Ford said in Clearfield the brick is red but 
the proposed color scheme for the Riverdale building will be browns and more neutral colors.  
Commissioner Fleming asked about the color of the metal roof and Mr. Ford said it will also be 
brown.  Mr. Ford explained the proposed signage along the façade of the building which he said 
would be white LED lettering and he said a monument sign is also proposed but not at this time.  
Mr. Ford said the lot line adjustment will be done through Weber County if the Council approves 
the proposed final site plan and he circulated a diagram of the proposed street lighting for the 
development to the Planning Commissioners.  Commissioner Fleming asked how the 
development’s exterior lighting could impact Cherry Creek Apartments and Mr. Eggett said the 
parking lot lights will have screens that aim the light away from the adjacent residential 
communities.  Commission Hilton asked about sewage capacity concerns and Mr. Ford said the 
outflow for the Bravo Arts Academy in Clearfield is 1.8 gallons per flush and in Riverdale the 
proposal is to use toilets that use 1.2 gallons per flush, a water savings of 30 percent.  Mr. Ford 
said a feature will be installed in the classrooms with young children so that teachers can prevent 
water wastage and he provided a copy of a cost estimate for an ADA ramp.  Chairman Jones 
asked for any additional questions or concerns and none were noted.   
 
 Motion: Commissioner Hilton moved to forward a favorable recommendation to the 

Council for final site plan approval for the Bravo Arts Academy.  
Commissioner Fleming seconded the motion.    

 
There was no discussion on the motion.   

Call the Question: The motion passed unanimously. 

F.   Discretionary Items 

Chairman Jones asked for any discretionary items and none were noted.   

G. Adjournment 

Motion: There being no further business to come before the Planning Commission, 
Commissioner Fleming moved to adjourn the meeting.  Commissioner Roubinet 
seconded the motion.  The motion passed unanimously.  The meeting adjourned at 
6:53 p.m.   

 



 

Riverdale City Planning Commission                                                   3                                                                                   October 14, 2014  

Approved:  October 28, 2014                       Attest:  
 
 
 
________________________________                                      __________________________  
Blair Jones, Chairman                       Ember Herrick, City Recorder  



RIVERDALE CITY 
PLANNING COMMISSION AGENDA  

October 28, 2014 
 

AGENDA ITEM: E1 
 
SUBJECT: Consideration of recommendation to City Council for Conditional Use Permit application for 

electronic sign located at approximately 5152 S. 1500 W.   
 
 
PETITIONER: Golden Spike Harley-Davidson Representative 
 
 
INFORMATION: Executive Summary  
 
 

Conditional Use Application  
 
 
Sign Detail Conditional Use  
 

 
 

 
BACK TO AGENDA 

















RIVERDALE CITY  
PLANNING COMMISSION AGENDA 

October 28, 2014 
 

AGENDA ITEM: F1 

 
SUBJECT: Discretionary Items 
  
PETITIONER: Elected, Appointed, and Staff 
 
ACTION REQUESTED BY PETITIONER: Open agenda item provided for 

comments or discussion on 
discretionary items. 

 
 

BACK TO AGENDA 
 
 
 


